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AD-NRF014 Residents Not indicated 
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Resident Not indicated 

AD-NRF016 

Resident Not indicated 

AD-NRF017 

Resident Not indicated 

AD-NRF018 

Sport England Not indicated 

AD-NRF019 

Elkesley Parish Council Not indicated 

AD-NRF020 

The Coal Authority Not indicated 

AD-NRF021 

Gladmans Not indicated 
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Environment Agency Not indicated 
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AD-NRF025 

Resident Not indicated 

AD-NRF026 

Resident Not indicated 
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From:
Sent: 09 February 2022 16:09
To: The Bassetlaw Plan
Subject: FW: Proposed Traveller's site on Blyth Road

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

From: 
Sent: 09 February 2022 15:10 
To: 
Cc: 'thebassettlawplan@bassetlaw.gov.uk' <thebassettlawplan@bassetlaw.gov.uk> 
Subject: Proposed Traveller's site on Blyth Road 

To whom it may concern. 

We are   situated approx. 400yards from the proposed Traveller’s site on Blyth Road.  
We have several concerns we would like to raise. 

 we are concerned that having a Travellers site so near to us will 
be extremely detrimental to our business, because of the public’s perception of travellers, and the recent articles in 
the press and media relating to Dogs and Cats being stolen. 
Customers are already asking whether their animals will be safe with us following the rumours already circulating 
regarding the proposed traveller’s site. 

Over the 5 years we have lived here we have had some dealing with the male person that occupies the land at 
present, this has included having to return horses to the site that have been loose on Blyth road, and his dogs 
running loose up and down the road and this resulting in one of  his dogs that had escaped from his land being run 
over and killed directly outside our gate, this had a detrimental effect on our business, as local people thought it was 
a dog that had escaped from our kennels. We pride ourselves on having excellent security for the animals we board 
on site. Following this very upsetting incident with his dog the male person became very angry and was threatening 
repercussions for the driver involved, whilst we understand he was very upset, but we found him extremely 
intimidating. Loose animals on a very busy Road could cause serious accidents. 

We feel that if a traveller’s site was to be developed on the land it would destroy the business, we have spent the 
last five years building up. 
There is also Heather Lee pampered pet grooming parlour directly opposite the proposed site and we regularly take 
dogs there on behalf of customers and speak regularly to Catherine, she already reports losing customers due to 
their fear of leaving their dogs opposite the site as it is at present, so we feel if the proposed traveller’s site goes 
ahead this will destroy both businesses.   

During the 5 years we have lived on Blyth Road we have seen the development of symmetry Park, Starbucks Coffee, 
KFC, and the development of the industrial site behind us, which is being built at present, we are starting to feel this 
area of Blyth has had enough development and is becoming unrecognisable as the area we moved too.  whilst we 
understand the need for some development to increase jobs, we are starting to feel like this part of Blyth is 
becoming a bit of a dumping ground.  
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At this stage we do not give permission for our names and the business name to be shared with the public and the 
owner of the proposed travellers site. 
  
Kind Regards 

 
 



 
AD-NRF015 

 
  



1

From:
Sent: 10 February 2022 17:42
To: The Bassetlaw Plan
Subject: Plan gypsie site at north Blyth

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

 
 
To whom it may concern 
I refer to Local Plan 2020-2037 
Addendum January 2022 
My name is   
And I have recently moved in to   

 
I have many reasons why I am objecting to this proposal  
But below are a few 

  
Some of the goings on over the road is nothing short of disgraceful and fear for my girls 
One of my other concerns is that I have started a breeding program with an endangered dog breed which is 
called a English Toy Terrier  
I’m in the process of asking people not only in the Uk but Europe aswell to join this program  
There is no way that people will entrust me with the beloved dogs when they see over the road 
I ask you to please take my views in mind when making your decision  
Many Thanks  

 



 
AD-NRF016 

 
  





 
AD-NRF017 
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From:
Sent: 12 February 2022 13:37
To: The Bassetlaw Plan
Subject: RE: OBJECTION TO THE REVISED PROPOSED DRAFT BASSETLAW PLAN JANUARY 

2022

Importance: High

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

 

OBJECTION TO THE PROPOSED DRAFT BASSETLAW PLAN JANUARY 2022  

SATURDAY 12 FEBRUARY 2022 

Dear Sirs, 

  

I write yet again giving my reasons and objection to the proposed plan to build more dwellings in Ordsall South.  The 

number of 1250 dwellings was absolutely ludicrous and now I have received a letter saying that you have changed 

the proposed plan and have increased the number of houses by another 80.  WHAT ARE YOU TRYING TO DO TO 

ORDSALL SOUTH?!  It’s too late once the houses have been built and you realise that the old, narrow roads in Ordsall 

South will not/cannot cope with more traffic.  Only this last week 2 lorries have been stuck on Goosemoor Bridge. 

  

You have had several responses from me prior to this email and my views remain the same as previously emailed to 

you and I repeat: 

  

High Street and Goosemoor Bridge barely copes with the traffic as it is.  The majority of houses have 2 cars, another 

1330 dwellings = the possibility of another 2660 cars using High Street and Goosemoor Bridge and in some cases the 

road to and through Eaton. 

  

Retford to Eaton Green Gap – there may well be some “green” land between Ordsall and Eaton but the road 

infrastructure cannot and will not cope with the extra volume of traffic, the possibility of up to 2660 vehicles on 

narrow roads. 

  

Both the bridges at Eaton and Goosemoor are not suitable for such heavy traffic.  Goosemoor Bridge is unable to 

cope as it is. 

  

Cllr. Jo White states “increasing the number of properties in the Ordsall South site was something we really didn’t 

want to do”.  The plan was thrown out in 2014 to build on this land and the headline in the Retford Times from Jo 

White said something on the lines of “Ordsall South cannot cope with this amount of new housing” and now you 

are actually wanting to build hundreds more houses than was put forward in 2014 and November 2020. 

  

I appreciate that the Government puts local councils under pressure and apparently there is a shortage of housing, 

but you don’t have to look too far to find more suitable areas in Retford that have better road infrastructures than 

Ordsall South.  How many more houses with their vehicles do you expect “old” Ordsall to cope with? 

  

I walk around a large area of the roads in Ordsall South most days of the week, cars are parked most of the way on 

one side of High Street making it only passable for 1 car to drive either up or down at a time, therefore causing 

traffic to queue to get either up or down.  Cars elsewhere parked half on the road and half on the pavement making 
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it impossible for me as a pedestrian to walk on the pavement and having to walk on the main road.  This is bad 

enough on the housing estates but when it’s occurring on Ordsall Road (the road where the school and rugby 

club  are), it’s very dangerous. 

  

I can see if this plan goes ahead that it will be the same as other developments in Ordsall that have been built – the 

houses will go up but the roundabouts, traffic lights, green areas etc that are promised will be forgotten about.  It’s 

too late once the housing has gone up and you realise the area cannot cope. 

  

I ask again, what happened to the idea of a Garden Village? 

  

The fields at the bottom of Bankside frequently flood.  High Street regularly floods when we have persistent rain as 

the drains cannot cope, if the farmland close by is built on, where will that rainwater go that would have drained 

into the fields?  As I understand it, the main sewer that runs down High Street, and even though there have already 

been several completed housing developments, no changes to the main sewer have been undertaken.  Surely 

building yet more houses on the fields will only lead to more flooding problems on High Street, the roads off and 

further into Retford and the surrounding villages further down the Idle Valley.    The more fields that are built on, 

surely the more drainage problems we will have. 

  

If the plan goes ahead, and I fear it will, you say that Retford has a relatively high proportion of older people.  If the 

plan gets the go ahead, will consideration be given to build bungalows for the older people on the smaller area of 

HS13 i.e. Hill View & River View, where there are already bungalows backing on to this area? The majority of these 

bungalows have small back gardens and bedrooms overlooking the field? 

  

Ollerton Road/Westhill Road ‐ The area around the Post Office/Co‐op and the other small shops is congested every 

single day with very limited off‐road parking.  Further housing development in or around Ordsall will make this 

situation significantly worse.  There are lots of children using this area both to and from school and using local 

facilities.  I say again, please don’t wait for a bad accident to happen before action is taken here. 

  

West Hill Road ‐ During morning and afternoon school times the main road in and out of Ordsall along West Hill 

Road is reduced to single line traffic due to parked cars either dropping off or collecting pupils at Ordsall Infant & 

Junior School.  This is a difficult road to negotiate at these times of day and problems will obviously become more 

acute when traffic volumes increase. 

  

Can you advise me please, is the council making sure that any future houses to be built in any part of Bassetlaw that 

the houses will be environmentally friendly, i.e. insulation, air source heat pumps, solar panels etc.? 

  

Should you need further clarification on any of my comments please do not hesitate to contact me. 

  

Please acknowledge receipt of this email. 

  

Yours faithfully,  

 

  



 
AD-NRF018 
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From:
Sent: 14 February 2022 16:33
To: The Bassetlaw Plan
Subject: 20220214 Bassetlaw Local Plan 2020-2037: Regulation 19 Publication Version 

Addendum

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

 

Thank you for reconsulting Sport England on the Addendum. We would not wish to raise any issues with the 
proposed deletions and additions. In particularly we are content with the rewording of polices ST3 and ST4. 
  
Regards   
  

 Planning Manager      

Please Note my working days are Monday to Thursday 

We have updated our Privacy Statement to reflect the recent changes to data protection law but rest assured, we will 
continue looking after your personal data just as carefully as we always have. Our Privacy Statement is published on 
our website, and our Data Protection Officer can be contacted by emailing Gaile Walters  

  

From:    
Sent: 18 October 2021 11:56 
To: thebassetlawplan@bassetlaw.gov.uk 
Cc:   
Subject: 20211018 Bassetlaw Local Plan 2020‐2037: Regulation 19 Publication Version  
  
Thank you for consulting Soprt England on the above, 
  
I hope following assessment of the whole plan, confirmation that the plan is considered as far as Sport England is 
concerned 

 Legally compliant  

 Sound and  

 Complies with the duty to co‐operate 
  
We would take this opportunity to confirm that the following policies are supported. 
  
ST3 
ST4 
  
HS 4 ‐ protection of Playing field 
HS13 – On site or off site contributions to outdoor and indoor sport as informed by evidence 
  
ST35 
ST39 
ST44 
ST45 





 
AD-NRF019 
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Overview  
1.1 The Parish Council wish to object in the strongest terms to the proposed allocation of GT005 

as a gypsy and traveller site as proposed in the Bassetlaw Local Plan Publication Addendum 
January 2022 on the basis that the site does not constitute sustainable development. It is  

1) outside the development boundary of Elkesley village  

2) accessible from Brough Lane a single-track lane that is unsuitable to accommodate 
the vehicular movements that accrue from the location of 9 pitches  

3) indicated to be in an area at high risk of surface water run off  

4) has previously been refused permission on the grounds of its unsuitably for one motor 
home – nothing has changed  

5) that the proposed allocation of GT005 is contrary to the 2015 guidance on Planning 
Policy for Travellers Sites  

6) that the assumption in the Local Plan Addendum that the sight can be ‘formalised’ is 
contrary to the usual site assessment process that considers the suitability of sites for 
land use planning purposes.   

  

Inadequate Access from Brough Lane 
1.2 Brough Lane is a Byway open to all Traffic (BOAT) which is defined as ‘A way where there is 

a right for vehicular and all other traffic, but the way is used mainly for the purposes for which 
footpaths and bridleways are used.’1 

Image 1 is taken from Google maps street view and shows that in 2009 the site was part of 
the open countryside.  

  

 
1 https://uk.practicallaw.thomsonreuters.com  
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Image 1 GT005 as it was in 2009 looking west along Brough Lane   

 

1.3 The image also shows Brough Lane, it is narrow intended only for agricultural vehicles. This 
is confirmed by image 2. Note also the blue sign saying unsuitable for motor vehicles.   

Image 2 looking south - junction where Brough Lane meets Lawn Wood Lane 
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Image 3 close up of road sign  

 

Image 4 access to Brough Lane from Coalpit Lane 
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Planning History of the Site  
1.4 In 2014 planning permission was refused (see 14/00710/FUL) for the use of a site for one 

motor home. The committee report noted that  

‘The site is located in open countryside .. and is served by Brough Lane which is a single truck 
access with no street lighting pedestrian facilities or passing places. 

Site is located in open countryside, outside, where development is strictly controlled except in 
certain exceptional circumstances. The proposed residential use does not fall within any of 
the define exceptional circumstances and the access arrangements to the site are 
unacceptable in highway safety terms. As such the proposal would be country to existing local 
and national planning policies and the principle is therefore not acceptable.  

The highway authority commented as follows ‘the highway authority have objected to the 
proposed development on Highway safety grounds due to the inadequate access width, no 
street lighting, no pedestrian facilities and no passing places.’ 

1.5 The site was changed ownership in 2014 and there is evidence from correspondence (see 
email at Appendix A from the parish clerk in 2014) that there was already unauthorised activity 
on the site. The parish council raised concerns about this matter to BDC again in 2019 – see 
Appendix B.   

Recent Permission and Highway issues on Brough Lane 
1.6 In 2016 planning permission was won on appeal for the erection of 4 dwellings on the eastern 

edge of Brough Lane. The reasons for the inspector’s decision are relevant to the allocation 
of GT005. At para 20 the inspector describes Brough Lane is ‘a ‘valued local recreational asset 
used by ramblers, runners, horse riders, children as a route to school, along with farmers. I 
understand that it forms part of a wider route of public rights of way. It is single width with 
banks on either side and lacks footpaths. There is no speed restriction or lighting and the 
surface is uneven.  

1.7 At para 21 the inspector opines ‘The appeal proposal would increase activity on Brough Lane 
but only on its initial eastern section for a limited distance. Given the modest scale of the 
scheme for 4 dwellings the increase in the volume of traffic would not be great. Moreover, the 
appeal scheme incorporates the widening of the site access (including improvements to 
visibility) and alterations to Brough Lane (including its widening on the north side along the 
site frontage to allow a passing place, re-surfacing up to the appeal site access, and the 
provision of a turning head for tankers visiting the sewage works).’  

1.8 The planning conditions required Brough Lane to be upgraded for the 55.38 m necessary to 
access the housing site for 4 new dwellings. The Gypsy and Traveller site is 265.86m along 
Brough Lane and the pitch number is 9. The proposed allocation of the site in the Local Plan 
is not tied to any condition about improving Brough Lane even though the number of vehicle 
movements are likely to be greater than that for the 4 dwellings.  

Image 5 shows the distance along Brough Lane to the proposed site allocation GT005. Note 
also the location of the access to the housing site under development (Google earth 8/7/20).  
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Image 5 

 

1.9 Image 6 shows the distance from the alternate entrance along Brough Lane to the proposed 
GT005 is 654m so this does not provide an improved access for the additional vehicular 
movements.   

Image 6 
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Site Location  

Outside the Development Boundary  
1.10 Image 5 and 6 show that the site is in the open countryside, 210m from the edge of the village 

in the open countryside. Development in the open countryside is contrary to national and local 
policy. Local Plans must be prepared with the objective of contributing to the achievement of 
sustainable development. This site is not considered to be sustainable.  

In an area at risk of flooding  
1.11 Image 7 is taken from the Environment Agency’s surface water flood risk mapping. Image 8 is 

the site overlaid with the flood risk map.2 and shows that the site is located in an area of high 
risk of flooding. This is contrary to the planning policy for travellers 2015 guidance which at 
para 13a) specifically advises local planning authorities to ensure that their policies ‘do not 
locate sites in areas at high risk of flooding … given the particular vulnerability of caravans’3.  

Image 74 

 

Image 8 is an overlay of the site on the flood plain. 

  

 
2 Map overlay provided by the Parish Council 
3 Map from https://check- ong-term-f ood-
r sk.serv ce.gov.uk/map?east ng=468346.19&north ng=375358.55&map=SurfaceWater  
4 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-policy-for-traveller-sites  
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1.15 Correspondence from the Parish Council to BDC raising concern about the unauthorised use 
since 2014 is at Appendices A and B. 

Conclusion  
1.16 It is the view of Elkesley Parish Council that the proposed site allocation GT005 is contrary to 

national and local policy and does not constitute sustainable development. The site is in the 
open countryside, access from Brough Lane is evidently inadequate and the site is at risk of 
flooding. BDC have not undertaken a thorough site assessment and seek through the site 
allocation process to formalise the use of the land even though that use is unsuitable.  

1.17 The Parish Council request that the site is removed from the Local Plan and enforcement 
action is taken to remove the unauthorised encampment.  
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Appendix A  
 

Correspondence from the Parish Council requesting enforcement action be taken 
 
From:  
Date: Thu, Jun 26, 2014 at 9:00 AM 
Subject: Re: application 14/00710/FUL Site West of Pepperly Hill, Brough Lane, Elkesley 
To: planning@bassetlaw.gov.uk <planning@bassetlaw.gov.uk> 
Cc:  
 

 
 
Re: Application 14/00710/FUL 
Location: Site West of Pepperly Hill, Brough Lane, Elkesley 
Proposal: Site motor home on non-domestic land for site security 
 
The Elkesley Parish Council has considered the above application and has strong objections for the following 
reasons: 
 
Material Considerations: 
 
1) The site in not within the village envelope 
2) The site is not allocated for development in the partially developed neighbourhood plan     which should hold 
some weight 
3) A previous application for development was refused by BDC due to the site not having suitable access 
 
Other concerns over the application: 
 
The application states the applicant's name and address as the land on the North side, Brough Lane, DN22 8AP 
- this site is vacant and not occupied by the applicant, the post code belongs to residents at the other end of 
Brough Lane near Low Street. 
 
 
The application states that work has not started - this is incorrect as work has been carried out on the site which 
the Enforcement Officers is aware of and told him to cease any further work; further work has been carried out 
since the Enforcement Officer's visit - photos available. 
 
 
The application states the reason for the siting of the motor home is for site security and states that trespasses 
have been lighting fires - local residents reported that the only fire there was lit by the applicant; the police have 
not received any complaints of trespasses/fires or children causing a nuisance. 
 
 
Ownership of the land - We have been informed that the applicant does not own the land. A resident has 
contacted the owner of the site in London who confirmed that he still owned the land. We were informed that the 
owner contacted the applicant and told him to clear off the site; the applicant then dumped the horses in a 
farmers field but he has since returned to the site. 
 
The Parish Council has contact details of the resident who can confirm the ownership of the land if required. 
 
We hope you will take the above into consideration. 
 
Regards 
 
 

 
Parish Clerk 
Elkesley Parish Council 





 
AD-NRF020 

 
  



1

From: planningconsultation@coal.gov.uk
Sent: 15 February 2022 12:10
To: The Bassetlaw Plan
Subject: Bassetlaw - Local Plan 2020-2037: Publication Version Addendum Consultation
Attachments: Consultation-Response-PPO-012-670-121.docx

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

 
 
 
 
 
Dear Planning Policy  
 
Following the policy consultation on 06 January 2022, please find attached our  
comments relating to the above policy.  
If you would like to discuss any of the issues raised, please contact us.  
 
Regards  
 
Planning and Local Authority Liaison team  
 
T: 01623 637119  
E: planningconsultation@coal.gov.uk  
W: https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/R8dsCKZVvs2jZArSM0kDZ?domain=gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Making a better future for people and the environment in mining areas. Like us on <a href=" 
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/Kz_hCL8VwTRJloYIqf_0t?domain=facebook.com" title="Like us on 
Facebook">Facebook</a> or  
follow us on <a href="https://protect-
eu.mimecast.com/s/sWnuCMQVxfqQvo6UJTzgf?domain=twitter.com" title="Follow us on  
Twitter">Twitter</a> and <a href="https://protect-
eu.mimecast.com/s/lAQECN96ys02wnMcRNl6r?domain=linkedin.com 
authority?trk=company_name" title="Join us on LinkedIn">LinkedIn</a>. 



 
 
 
Bassetlaw District Council - Local Plan 2020-2037: Publication Version 
Addendum Consultation 
 
 
Contact Details 
Planning and Development Team  
The Coal Authority 
200 Lichfield Lane 
Berry Hill 
MANSFIELD 
Nottinghamshire 
NG18 4RG 
 
Planning Email:  planningconsultation@coal.gov.uk 
Planning Enquiries:   01623 637 119 
 
Date 
15th February 2022  
 
 
Dear   
 
Local Plan 2020-2037: Publication Version Addendum Consultation 
 
Thank you for your notification received on the 6th January 2022 in respect of the above 
consultation.   
 
The Coal Authority is a non-departmental public body sponsored by the Department of Business, 
Energy & Industrial Strategy.  As a statutory consultee, The Coal Authority has a duty to respond 
to planning applications and development plans in order to protect the public and the environment 
in mining areas. 
 
Our records indicate that within the Bassetlaw District area there are some recorded coal mining 
features present at surface and shallow depth including; mine entries, fissures and reported 
surface hazards.  These features may pose a potential risk to surface stability and public safety.  
Consideration will need to be given to the risks posed by these features if new development 
proposals come forward in areas where the recorded features are present.  Any formal planning 
application submitted for development in these area would need to be supported by a Coal Mining 
Risk Assessment.   
 
This current consultation relates to a number of changes proposed to the Local Plan, as set out in 
the Publication Version Addendum.  I can confirm that the Planning team at the Coal Authority 
have no specific comments to make on the changes proposed.   
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me should you wish to discuss this further. 
 
Yours sincerely    



 
  

    
Development Team Leader (Planning)    
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From:
Sent: 15 February 2022 15:43
To: The Bassetlaw Plan
Subject: Bassetlaw Local Plan 2020-2037: Publication Version Addendum consultation - 

Gladman Development's Representations
Attachments: Bassetlaw Local Plan 2020-2037 Publication Version Addendum January 2022 - 

Gladman Developments r.pdf

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

 

Good afternoon,  
  
Please find attached Gladman Development’s representations to above consultation.  
  
It would be appreciated if you could confirm receipt of the representations by responding to this email.  
  
Many thanks,  

 
  
    

  
Promotion and Policy Planner   

  

 

  

T: 01260 288 981 |   
www.gladman.co.uk 

 

   

This email (and any attachment) is confidential, may be legally privileged and is intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the 
intended recipient please do not disclose, copy or take any action in reliance on it. If you receive this message in error please tell us by reply (or telephone the sender) and delete all 
copies on your system. 
Whilst we have taken reasonable precautions to ensure that any attachment to this email has been swept for viruses, we cannot accept liability for any damage sustained as a result of 
software viruses and would advise that you carry out your own virus checks before opening any attachment. Please note that communications sent by or to any person through our 
computer systems may be viewed by other Gladman personnel and agents. 
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1 INTRODUCTION 

 Context 

 Gladman welcome the opportunity to comment on the Bassetlaw District Council Local 

Plan Publication Version Addendum consultation and request to be updated on future 

consultations and the progress of the Local Plan. 

 Gladman Developments Ltd specialise in the promotion of strategic land for residential 

development and associated community infrastructure and have considerable experience 

in contributing to the development plan preparation process having made representations 

on numerous planning documents throughout the UK alongside participating in many 

Examinations in Public. 

 The Council will need to carefully consider its policy choice and ensure that the proposed 

approach positively responds to the revised National Planning Policy Framework (2021). 

There will also be a need to take consideration of changing circumstances associated with 

national planning policy and guidance over the course of the plan preparation period, 

including the Government’s emerging proposals for the planning system. 

 Gladman Developments are promoting the former Bevercotes Colliery site through the 

local plan making process. The Local Plan Publication Version Addendum takes steps to 

positively secure the regeneration of Bevercotes Colliery through allocating the site for 

employment uses. Indeed, the site offers significant economic and regeneration 

opportunities for the overarching economy strategy of the Plan in a key logistic sector 

corridor and through the implementation of extant planning permission for 253,960 sq.m 

of B8 development. 

 Gladman looks forward to engaging further with the Council as the plan preparation process 

progresses. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 Plan Making  

 The National Planning Policy Framework sets out four tests that must be met for Local Plans 

to be considered sound. In this regard, we submit that in order to prepare a sound plan it is 

fundamental that it is:  

• Positively Prepared – The Plan should be prepared on a strategy which seeks to meet 

objectively assessed development and infrastructure requirements including unmet 

requirements from neighbouring authorities where it is reasonable to do so and consistent 

with achieving sustainable development. 

• Justified – the plan should be an appropriate strategy, when considered against the 

reasonable alternatives, based on a proportionate evidence base. 

• Effective – the plan should be deliverable over its period and based on effective joint working 

on cross-boundary strategic priorities; and 

• Consistent with National Policy – the plan should enable the delivery of sustainable 

development in accordance with the policies in the Framework. 

  



 

 

 

2 PUBLICATION VERSION ADDENDUM JANUARY 2022 

 Background  

 The Bassetlaw District Core Strategy and Development Management Policies Document 

were adopted in December 2011. The Council previously were working towards a Site 

Allocations Plan; however, the Council took the decision to withdraw the Plan and began 

working towards a new Local Plan. 

 Following the Council’s Regulation 19 consultation, new evidence and responses made 

during the 2021 consultation the Council have proposed a number of focussed changes to 

the plan, including the allocation of the former Bevercotes Colliery for employment uses in 

Policy ST7. 

 Gladman are in general support of the Local Plan Publication Version Addendum document 

and provide specific comments on the focussed changes below.  

 Plan Period 

 Gladman support the proposed extension to the plan period up to 2038 to ensure that the 

Local Plan will plan for a period of 15 years upon the date of adoption as required by the 

Framework1.  

 Policy ST7: Provision of Land for Employment Development 

 Policy ST7 builds on the Council Plan aspirations and capitalises on the District’s locational 

advantage by promoting employment locations with proximity to the A1/A57 strategic road 

network and local labour, which also provide strategic connectivity to the M1, the wider East 

Midlands region and South Yorkshire. 

 Gladman welcome the allocation of the former Bevercotes Colliery, which benefits from 

extant planning permission for redevelopment to B2 and B8 uses, for 42 hectares of 

employment land. The redevelopment of the former colliery will remediate and reclaim a 

significant brownfield site which aligns with the Strategic Objectives of the Plan while also 

enhancing habitats for nature and wildlife including designated Local Wildlife Sites, which 

through continual improvement will help realise the areas’ full biodiversity potential. 

However, it is noted that the planning committee 1st paragraph (see appendix 1) and the 

 
1 NPPF (2021) Paragraph 22 



 

 

 

application documents both refer to a net developable area of 43Ha, rather than the 42Ha 

that has been listed within ST7. Accordingly, Gladman consider that if the extant permission 

were being used to inform this figure for the local plan, as Gladman suspect was always the 

intention, that 43Ha would be the most appropriate figure to be used.  

 The allocation of the site supports the economic aspirations of the district through 

providing a flexible support of employment land which meet the increased employment 

and logistics demand along the A1 and A57 corridors as identified by Iceni in the A1 Corridor 

Logistics Assessment Final Report (August 2021).  

 It may be prudent to provide further policy wording to guide proposals for Bevercotes 

Colliery, similar to the Strategic Employment Site guidance set out for proposals at 

SSEM001: Apleyhead Junction.  

  

 

  



 

 

 

3 CONCLUSIONS 

 Summary 

 Gladman welcomes the opportunity to comment on the Bassetlaw District Council Local 

Plan Addendum Version January 2022 and have provided comments on a number of the 

focussed changes that have been the Council have made to the Local Plan and hope these 

representations are informative and useful as the Local Plan progresses towards 

Examination in Public.  

 The Local Plan is taking positive steps to meet their economic aspirations through the 

allocation of a flexible range of employment sites, including the former Bevercotes Colliery 

which is situated in a key location for logistic development the A1 and A57 alongside being 

approximately 17 miles from the M1. As above, Gladman consider that the net developable 

area of the extant permission should be 43Ha, rather than the 42Ha, which has been 

currently proposed within ST7. 

 Gladman request to be kept informed regarding any updates in the emerging Plan process 

and the opportunity to appear at future Examination in Public hearing sessions 

 

  



 

 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 Bevercotes Colliery Planning Committee Report 
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From:
Sent: 16 February 2022 09:45
To: The Bassetlaw Plan
Subject: Environment Agency Response to:  LT/2006/000221/CS-08/SB1-L01
Attachments: PlanningProposal.rtf

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

 
 
The Local Development Document has been reviewed and I enclose the Environment Agency's comments 
on: 
Core Strategy 
Bassetlaw District Council 
Core Strategy 
This message has been sent using TLS 1.2 
Information in this message may be confidential and may be legally privileged. If you have received this 
message by mistake, please notify the sender immediately, delete it and do not copy it to anyone else. We 
have checked this email and its attachments for viruses. But you should still check any attachment before 
opening it. We may have to make this message and any reply to it public if asked to under the Freedom of 
Information Act, Data Protection Act or for litigation. Email messages and attachments sent to or from any 
Environment Agency address may also be accessed by someone other than the sender or recipient, for 
business purposes. 



Environment Agency 
Trent Side North, West Bridgford, Nottingham, NG2 5FA. 
Customer services line: 03708 506 506 
www.gov.uk/environment-agency 
Cont/d.. 

 
Bassetlaw District Council 
Policy and Implementation Unit 
Queens Buildings Potter Street 
Worksop 
Nottinghamshire 
S80 2AH 
 
 

 
 
Our ref: LT/2006/000221/CS-
08/SB1-L01 
Your ref:  
 
Date:  16 February 2022 
 
 

 
Dear Sir/Madame 
 
 
Bassetlaw Local Plan 2020-2037: Publication Version Addendum 
 
Thank you for consulting the Environment Agency on this consultation on the Bassetlaw 
Local Plan 2020-2037: Publication Version Addendum. 
 
The Environment Agency has reviewed the proposed amendments that are highlighted 
within the Addendum document. We have the following comments which we trust will be 
useful. 
 
Biodiversity Net Gain 
We welcome that the Local Plan has been updated to include the reference to the 
Environment Bill receiving Royal Ascent which provides further certainty in requiring 
developers to provide a minimum of 10% biodiversity net gain. Opportunities to provide 
more than the minimum requirement should be encouraged through all development. 
 
As already highlighted within 8.5 Multi-Functional Green and Blue Infrastructure of the 
Publication version of the Local Plan opportunities for multifunctional environmental 
benefits are encouraged to be looked at through green and blue infrastructure. In the 
cases where offsetting is required for biodiversity net gain and carbon mitigation, 
opportunities should also be explored in these areas to provide these multifunctional 
benefits such as natural flood management, and improvements to water quality. 
 
Additional Gypsy and Traveller Sites 
We note that two new sites have been added into the Local Plan. Both sites are situated 
in flood zone 1. We would also highlight that these developments should ensure that 
connection to existing mains sewers is undertaken where it is shown to be feasible to do 
so. Where connection to the mains drainage is not feasible, please find the following 
advice: 
http://ecab.planningportal.co.uk/Uploads/EA LPA advice non major dev non mains
drainage 2019.pdf 
 
High Marnham ‘Area of Best Fit’ 
We note that High Marnham is no longer classified as an allocation and is now deemed 
an ‘Area of Best Fit’ for future renewable energy creation. Whilst now not an allocation 
we would highlight that when and if future development takes place on this site, 
appropriate remediation will need to be undertaken to ensure the protection of 
groundwater and surface water. The red line boundary for this area of best fit is 
surrounded by flood zones 2 and 3 and we would highlight that any future development 
should be kept out of these areas of fluvial flood risk. If future development is to be 



  

End 
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proposed in flood zones 2 and 3, then the sequential test and appropriate flood risk 
assessments will need to be undertaken to ensure development does not increase flood 
risk to the development or to others in line with the requirements of the NPPF. 
 
The High Marham site boundary is either in close proximity to or encompasses a 
number of EA maintained assets including defence embankments on the Trent and 
Marham Drain (Ordinary Watercourse leading to the Trent), an outfall from the Marham 
Drain to the Trent and a pump house (very Western side of site). Any future 
development plans will need to undertake early engagement with the EA, ensuring an 
8m stand off from the defences and securing our access to these structures for 
inspection, maintenance and operation. 
 
Bevercotes Colliery 
We note that Bevercotes Colliery has been included as new allocation EM008a within 
the Local Plan. The site is situated on Source Protection Zone 3 and a secondary 
aquifer and given the historic use of the site, the redevelopment of the site will need to 
ensure appropriate remediation is undertaken to ensure the protection of groundwater 
and surface water given the site is situated next to the River Meden. 
 
The southern eastern boundary of the proposed allocation as well as a small section of 
the south western boundary are situated next to the main river the River Meden and are 
partly located within flood zones 2 and 3. If development is proposed within flood zones 
2 and 3 then the Local Planning Authority will need to be satisfied an appropriate 
sequential test has been undertaken. A suitable buffer zone of a minimum of 8m will be 
required from the River Meden. The buffer will ensure protection of existing ecology as 
well as providing opportunities to provide  significant biodiversity net gain. Opportunities 
to provide wider environmental enhancements should also be explored, such as 
opportunities to provide water quality improvements.  
 
The minimum 8m buffer would also ensure that access is maintained to the River 
Meden to allow our field teams access when required. 
 
Given the large nature of the proposed redevelopment of this site, any developer will 
need to ensure that foul drainage is connected to the mains system. Developers will 
need to check with Severn Trent Water to understand how they can connect to the 
nearest mains connections. Developers will need to ensure that any receiving sewage 
treatment works has enough capacity to take new foul drainage proposals. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Planning Specialist 
 
Direct dial 02030 253277 
Direct e-mail  
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From:
Sent: 16 February 2022 12:04
To:
Subject: FW: Proposed traveller site Brought Lane Elkesley

Please could you acknowledge? 
 

 
 
Planning Policy Manager 
Bassetlaw District Council 
 
Queens Buildings 
Potter Street 
Worksop S80 2AH 
 
Tel: 01909 533495 

 
 
 

From:    
Sent: 16 February 2022 09:56 
To:   
Subject: FW: Proposed traveller site Brought Lane Elkesley 

 
Morning, is this the one we are looking to allocate in the new local plan ?  
 
No sure where to send the objection to ?  
 

From:    
Sent: 15 February 2022 20:16 
To: Planning <planning@bassetlaw.gov.uk> 
Subject: Proposed traveller site Brought Lane Elkesley 

 

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

 
 
I wish to formal object to the proposed site in the village of Elkesley. By chance I have spotted the proposal 
in the parish magazine, the questionnaire was never delivered to us for our option. I am angry that yet again 
our option have not been sort on a matter which potentially will have an impact on your privacy and 
security. My wife and I have lived in this property for 23 years we live isolated in house  

  
Approx 1.5 mile from the proposed site.  
 
My concern are we already have quad bikers and motor cyclist riding through the private woodlands and 
track close to the house which is often unnerving especially in the evening and night time, The noise is 
thunderous and scary. We have never involved the police as by the time we would get a response they have 
gone. The thought of a site and the possibility of this increasing this course my wife and I great concerns 
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Project Title: 

North Road, Retford 

Agent: 

 

Contact Details: 
c/o Fisher German LLP 

The Estates Office 

Norman Court 

Ashby-de-la-Zouch 

LE65 2UZ 

 

  

01530446039  
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01 Introduction 

1.1 These representations have been prepared on behalf of The Hospital of the Holy and Undivided 

Trinity in respect of their land interests at North Road, Retford, which is a proposed allocation 

within the Draft Plan; Site HS7: Trinity Farm, Retford. The landowner has promoted the wider land 

to the south and east of North Road (15/00493/OUT). The land to the south has since been 

acquired by Avant Homes who have commenced development (20/01477/RES).  

 

1.2 The Hospital of the Holy and Undivided Trinity generally support the proposed revisions to the 

Local Plan as set out within the Publication Version Addendum consultation document.  

 

 
Figure 1: Google Earth extract illustrating proposed Site HS7 (redline) and land the approved under 15/00493/OUT 
 

1.3 For ease of reference, these representations discuss policies in the order in which they appear in 

the Plan. Where we have not commented, we have no specific comments at this stage. 
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02 Representations  

POLICY ST1: Bassetlaw’s Spatial Strategy 

2.1 The increase in the Plan period is supported and considered sensible to ensure the Local Plan is 

planning for an appropriate timeframe in accordance with national policy. The subsequent 

increase in the housing requirement, and its distribution through the Spatial Hierarchy is also 

supported.  

 

2.2 In respect of Retford, as we have detailed in our previous representations to the emerging Local 

Plan, it is considered an appropriate and deliverable strategy to increase the level of housing 

directed to the town. Recent delivery within Bassetlaw demonstrates the latent ability of Retford 

to deliver housing and points to a strong local market. Failure to deliver sufficient housing in 

Retford could drive up house prices and rental prices, having significant impacts, particularly on 

first time buyers. Additional housing will also provide more affordable homes in the town, having 

strong social benefits.  

 

POLICY ST7: Provision of Land for Employment Development 

2.3 The revisions to Policy ST7 are fully supported, in particular in so far as they relate to our client’s 

interests at Trinity Farm, Retford (EM006) as discussed later within these representations.  

 

2.4 As set out at 6.1.11 of the Consultation Document, it is considered that the Council are fully 

justified in utilising historic trends of employment land uptake to inform future delivery particularly 

given the significant existing supply of employment land currently available within the district.  

 

2.5 The requirement to review the Local Plan five years after adoption, provides a reasonable 

opportunity to critically assess the uptake of employment land and ongoing need, and review 

whether additional employment land should be allocated as part of that process. In the meantime 

it is considered that there is sufficient employment land available to ensure that any reduction in 

provision through the emerging Local Plan will not result in a shortfall over the next 5-10 years; 

thus providing ample time for the Local Plan to be monitored and any needed course of action 

delivered.  
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2.6 The reduction in E(g), B2 and B8 uses on Trinity Farm, Retford (EM006), from 5ha to 2.7ha is fully 

supported. The reduction reflects the market interest in the site and enables other employment 

generating uses to be brought forward on the site. It is anticipated that a scheme for all the 

employment generating land at Trinity Farm will be brought forward for pre-application 

discussions imminently, in accordance with the Addendum Draft Local Plan.  

 

POLICY ST15: Provision of Land for Housing  

2.7 As detailed in response to Policy 21: Site HS7, the increased capacity at HS7, Trinity Farm, Retford 

is fully supported is fully supported and reflects our previous representations that the site can 

deliver additional homes in excess of the 244 dwellings previously proposed. The increase to 305 

new homes ensures best use of the available land. Avant Homes, who are currently constructing 

the new homes, immediately to the south of the site, have tested the delivery of the proposed 305 

dwellings along with the emerging policy requirements of Policy 21: HS7 and have confirmed that 

305 dwellings is easily deliverable on site.  

 

Site HS7: Trinity Farm, Retford 

2.8 As detailed in previous representations, the proposed allocation of land at Trinity Farm, Retford 

(HS7) for residential use is supported. The site is sustainably located adjacent to Retford and will 

form a logical Phase 2 scheme to the wider mixed-use development immediately south of the site. 

The site is within close proximity to a number of existing bus stops, which provide easy and regular 

access to Retford’s town centre, Doncaster and other locations. The site also enjoys a good 

synergy with existing and proposed employment development, which will enable people to live 

close to their place of work. The proposed allocation is sound and will make a positive contribution 

to meeting future housing needs within the town.  

 

2.9 As detailed in response to Policy ST15, the increase in units from 244 dwellings to 305 is fully 

supported and reflects our previous representations that the site can deliver additional homes in 

excess of the 244 dwellings previously proposed. The increase to 305 new homes ensures best 

use of the available land. Avant Homes, who are currently constructing the new homes, 

immediately to the south of the site, have tested the delivery of the proposed 305 dwellings along 

with the emerging policy requirements of Policy 21: HS7 and have confirmed that 305 dwellings is 

easily deliverable on site.  
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2.10 The proposed changes, as set out at 7.8.1, in respect of the employment uses are also supported. 

As referred to under Policy ST7, the reduction in E(g), B2 and B8 uses on Trinity Farm, Retford 

(EM006), from 5ha to 2.7ha, and recognition that the remaining employment land will deliver 

employment generating uses, is fully supported. The reduction reflects the market interest in the 

site and enables other employment generating uses to be brought forward on the site. The 

proposed changes will ensure that the site makes a valuable contribution towards providing jobs, 

whilst retaining flexibility to enable the site to be brought forward as soon as possible thereby 

accelerating delivery and economic growth.  

 

POLICY 21: Site HS7 - Site Specific Criteria  

2.11 As detailed above, the increase in units from 244 dwellings to 305 dwellings is supported and 

accords with our representations to previous iterations of the emerging Local Plan that the site 

could make more efficient use of the land by delivering in excess of 297 dwellings. The increase to 

305 dwellings has been tested and is deliverable.  

 

Good quality design and local character 

2.12 The amended wording relating to National Grid and Network Rail is supported. As has already been 

demonstrated through the delivery of land immediately south of the site, the landowner and any 

future housebuilder will engage positively with National Grid and Network Rail in bringing forward 

a planning application.  

 

Green/Blue Infrastructure  

2.13 The deletion of the requirement to deliver a 0.5ha community woodland is fully supported. As 

detailed in previous representations the emerging policy requirement for this was not justified nor 

was it commensurate to the scale of the allocation. The site already benefits from existing mature 

trees on the site’s northern boundary. The delivery of the proposed allocation will include a 

landscaping strategy which will seek to enhance this planting; there is however no justification for 

the creation of new woodland in this location. 

 

Transport and connectivity  

2.14 Concern is raised in respect of the inclusion of the requirement of a cycle track at k) ii. of Policy 

21: HS27: Trinity Farm. It is not clear what is required as this has not been defined. In addition, the 

proposal for a cycle track has not been justified and it is questioned whether a cycle track within 

the site is need having regard to the delivery of estate roads, streets and shared surface which will 
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be safe for cycling purposes. Access to the cycleway east of the A638 will be available via existing 

crossings and access points and does not require separate cycle infrastructure to be accessed 

safely.  

 

2.15 Criteria iv. seeks “an appropriate financial contribution towards improving public transport 

infrastructure to address public transport usage associated with the development”. The scheme will 

provide contributions to mitigate its impact where it is evidenced and justified. It is considered that 

the text should be amended to state: “Where necessary and justified a financial contribution towards 

improving public transport infrastructure to address public transport usage associated with the 

development”. 

 

2.16 In respect of off-site highways works, as indicated above, the development will mitigate its impact 

where necessary and justified. The wording of criteria viii. includes references to junctions which 

have not yet been fully assessed and which are some distance from the site; the impact of the 

development on these junctions will be assessed in detail through a planning application and 

appropriate mitigation proposed at that stage. The emerging policy should be amended to delete 

the list of junctions currently identified and reworded to state: “appropriate improvements to off-site 

highways infrastructure in the locality of the site will be provided for where evidenced and fully justified”. 

 

 



 
AD-NRF025 
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From:
Sent: 16 February 2022 18:24
To: The Bassetlaw Plan
Subject: Fwd: Objection to developing Ordsall South

External Message ‐ Be aware that the sender of this email originates from outside of the Council. Please be cautious when 
opening links or attachments in email 

 
 
 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From:  
Date: 16 February 2022 at 18:22:35 GMT 
To:  
Subject: Objection to developing Ordsall South 

  
I wish to inform you that I continue to object to the proposed planning of 
houses/properties in Ordsall South.  I am saddened that I have had to write again due 
to a further increase to homes in the proposal. 
I do not agree that there is any requirement and also I don’t agree to the building 
beyond the current boundary of Retford. 
Bassetlaw District Council have repeatedly said that over 10,000 houses have to be 
built as a directive from the UK Government. This is not true as the Government 
formula calculates the requirement to be 4,896 which is considerably lower.  This 
alone brings into question the legality of the plan. 
The proposal has also been considered unsound by Nottinghamshire County Council 
and the strategy fails to integrate all aspects of Bassetlaw’s developments and ignores 
the factors previously identified in the Bassetlaw Transport Strategy and 
Infrastructure Development plan where the use of the community infrastructure levies 
is stated as a key requirement. 
I continue to be extremely concerned about the possibility of flooding of my home if 
the fields are built on, the fields and surrounding ditches flood retain a lot of water 
following heavy rainfall. I do not trust the answers provided and have very grave 
concerns about potential damage caused to my property and garden as water not being 
able to be absorbed into this vast area as it currently is. 
Recently we have seen a larger range of birds and wildlife in the area and it is very 
clear that this proposal would have a huge effect on this wildlife. 
I am also hugely concerned about the massive increase of traffic in the area if this 
proposal was granted. I believe this would have a increase risk of health and safety to 
residents. 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Kind regards  
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